
 

Please note: Electronic copies of this agenda and its related papers  
are available via the Council’s website www.maldon.gov.uk. 

APOLOGIES Committee Services  DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, 
PERFORMANCE AND 
GOVERNANCE 
Paul Dodson  

Email: Committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk  

    
   01 March 2022 

Dear Councillor 

 
You are summoned to attend the meeting of the; 

 

SOUTH EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE  

 

on WEDNESDAY 9 MARCH 2022 at 7.30 pm 

 

in the Council Chamber, Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon. 

 
Please Note:  All meetings will continue to be live streamed on the Council’s YouTube channel for 
those wishing to observe remotely.  Public participants wishing to speak remotely at a meeting can 
continue to do so via Microsoft Teams. 
 
To register your request to speak please submit a Public Access form (to be submitted by 12noon 
on the working day before the Committee meeting).  All requests will be considered on a first-come, 
first-served basis. 
 
A copy of the agenda is attached. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP:  

CHAIRMAN Councillor V J Bell 

VICE-CHAIRMAN Councillor N J Skeens 

COUNCILLORS M G Bassenger 
B S Beale MBE 
R G Boyce MBE 
Mrs P A Channer 
R P F Dewick 
A S Fluker 
M W Helm 
A L Hull 
W Stamp, CC 

Unrestricted Document Pack

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/watchlive
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=VH_RilQmuUumwvI0YlcqFJCd4KzoXBdDs1brNZU39TJUOVpCU0xQVlRWQlhHVU8wVThIMU03UjFLSC4u


 

Page 2 

AGENDA 
SOUTH EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY 9 MARCH 2022 
 
1. Chairman's notices   
 
2. Apologies for Absence   
 
3. Minutes of the last meeting  (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 12 January 2022, 

(copy enclosed). 
 

4. Disclosure of Interest   
 
 To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, other 

Pecuniary Interests or Non-Pecuniary Interests relating to items of business on the 
agenda having regard to paragraphs 6-8 inclusive of the Code of Conduct for 
Members. 
 
(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting). 
 

5. 22/00035/FUL - Temperance House, 22 High Street, Burnham-On-Crouch, CM0 
8AA  (Pages 11 - 18) 

 
 To consider the report of the Director of Service Delivery (copy enclosed, Members’ 

Update to be circulated)*. 
 

6. Any other items of business that the Chairman of the Committee decides are 
urgent   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 

 
 

NOTICES 
 
Recording of Meeting 
Please note that the Council will be recording and publishing on the Council’s website any 
part of this meeting held in open session.   
 
Fire 
In the event of a fire, a siren will sound.  Please use the fire exits marked with the green 
running man.  The fire assembly point is outside the main entrance to the Council Offices.  
Please gather there and await further instruction. 
 
Health and Safety 
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.  There are 
steps behind the main horseshoe as well as to the side of the room. 
 
Closed-Circuit Televisions (CCTV) 
Meetings held in the Council Chamber are being monitored and recorded by CCTV. 

 

Note: 
1. The Council operates a facility for public participation.  This will operate only in 

relation to the consideration and determination of planning applications under 
Agenda Item No 5. 

2.  The Committee may consider representation from one objector, one supporter, a 
Parish / Town Council representative, and the applicant / agent.  Please note that the 
opportunity to participate is afforded only to those having previously made written 
representation. 

3.  Anyone wishing to participate must register by completing the online form no later 
than noon on the working day before the Committee meeting. 

4.  For further information please see the Council’s website – 
www.maldon.gov.uk/committees  

* Please note the list of related Background Papers attached to this agenda. 

https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=VH_RilQmuUumwvI0YlcqFJCd4KzoXBdDs1brNZU39TJUOVpCU0xQVlRWQlhHVU8wVThIMU03UjFLSC4u
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/committees


 

Page 4 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
The Background Papers listed below have been relied upon in the preparation of this report: 

1. The current planning applications under consideration and related correspondence. 

2. All third party representations and consultation replies received. 

3. The following Statutory Plans and Supplementary Planning Guidance, together with 
relevant Government legislation, Circulars, Advice, Orders, Directions and Guidance: 

 
Development Plans 

 Maldon District Local Development Plan approved by the Secretary of State 21 July 
2017 

 Burnham-On-Crouch Neighbourhood Development Plan (2017) 
 
Legislation 

 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 

 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

 Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990 

 The Planning and Compensation Act 1991  

 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) 

 The Planning Act 2008 

 The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as 
amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2010 

 The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regs 2007 

 The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regs 2011 

 Localism Act 2011 

 The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as 
amended) 

 Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013 

 Housing and Planning Act 2016 

 Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017 

 The Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017 
 

Supplementary Planning Guidance and Other Advice 

i) Government policy and guidance  

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) - 2018 

 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)  

 Planning policy for Traveller sites - 2015 

 Relevant government circulars 

 Relevant Ministerial Statements (as referred to in the report) 

 Essex and South Suffolk Shoreline Management Plan – October 2010 



 

Page 5 

Supplementary Planning Guidance and Other Advice (continued) 

ii) Essex County Council 

 Essex Design Guide 1997 (Note: superseded by Maldon District Design Guide 2018) 

 Essex and Southend on Sea Waste Local Plan 2017 

 Essex Minerals Local Plan 2014 

iii) Maldon District Council 

 Five Year Housing Land Supply Statement 2017 / 18 

 Maldon District Design Guide – 2017 

 Maldon and Heybridge Central Area Masterplan - 2017 

 Infrastructure Delivery Plan (All versions, including update in Council’s 
Hearing Statement) 

 Infrastructure Phasing Plan (January 2015 and January 2017 update for 
Examination) 

 North Heybridge Garden Suburb Strategic Masterplan Framework - 2014 

 South Maldon Garden Suburb Strategic Masterplan Framework – 2014 
(adapted as Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2018) 

 Vehicle Parking Standards SPD - 2018 

 Renewable and Low Carbon Technologies SPD – 2018 

 Maldon District Specialist Housing SPD – 2018 

 Affordable Housing and Viability SPD – 2018 

 Accessibility to Buildings SPD – December 2006 

 Children’s Play Spaces SPD – March 2006 

 Sadd’s Wharf SPD – September 2007 

 Heybridge Basin Timber Yard SPD – February 2007 

 Developer Contributions Guide SPD - 2010 

 Heybridge Basin Village Design Statement – 2007 

 Wickham Bishops Village Design Statement – 2011 

 Woodham Walter Village Design Statement – 2011 

 Althorne Village Design Statement 

 Woodham Walter Village Design Statement 

 Various Conservation Area Appraisals 
 

All Background Papers are available for inspection at the Maldon District Council Offices, 
Princes Road, Maldon, Essex CM9 5DL during normal office hours. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
MINUTES of 
SOUTH EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
12 JANUARY 2022 

 
PRESENT 
 

Chairman Councillor V J Bell 

Vice-Chairman Councillor N J Skeens 

Councillors B S Beale MBE, R G Boyce MBE, Mrs P A Channer, 
R P F Dewick, A S Fluker, M W Helm, A L Hull and 
W Stamp, CC 

435. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES  

 
The Chairman welcomed everyone present and went through some general 
housekeeping arrangements for the meeting. 
 

436. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor M G Bassenger. 
 

437. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  

 
RESOLVED by assent that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 8 
December 2021 be approved and confirmed. 
 

438. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST  

 
Councillor W Stamp CC declared a non-pecuniary interest as a Member of Essex 
County Council, a statutory consultee on all planning related matters. 
 
Councillor A S Fluker declared a non-pecuniary interest as he was acquainted with 
both the agent and the applicant. 
 
Councillor R G Boyce declared a non-pecuniary interest as lived on Hall Road. 
 
Councillor A L Hull declared a non-pecuniary interest as she was acquainted with the 
applicant. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



439. 21/01103/FUL - HALL MEADOWS, HALL ROAD, ASHELDHAM, SOUTHMINSTER, 
ESSEX, CM0 7JF  

 

Application Number 21/01103/FUL 

Location Hall Meadows, Hall Road, Asheldham, Essex, CM0 7JF 

Proposal 
Retention of the existing temporary rural workers 
dwelling for a further period of 3 years. 

Applicant Mr and Mrs David and Linzie Henson 

Agent Mr Anthony Cussen - Cussen Construction Consultants 

Target Decision Date 07.01.2022 

Case Officer Anna Tastsoglou 

Parish ASHELDHAM  

Reason for Referral to the 
Committee / Council 

Departure from the Local Development Plan 2014 – 
2029 
Member Call In 
Councillor A S Fluker has called in the application for the 
following policy reasons: LDP policy D1 (Design Quality 
and the Built Environment) 

 
Following the Officer’s presentation, Mr Cussen, the agent, addressed the Committee. 
The Chairman then opened the debate. 
 
Councillor Fluker having called in the application opened the discussion. He said that 
there had been no objections from local residents, the parish council supported the 
application and he felt that the Officer’s recommendation was correct. He proposed that 
the application be approved in accordance with the Office’s recommendation. This was 
duly seconded by Councillor Dewick. 
 
It was noted that in this instance, given the extenuating circumstances, it was 
appropriate to allow a second temporary extension. 
 
There being no further discussion the Chairman put Councillor Fluker’s proposal to 
approve the application to the Committee and it was agreed by assent. 
 
RESOLVED that the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 
 
1 The mobile home hereby permitted shall be removed and the land restored to 

its former condition in accordance with a scheme of work to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority on or before 12th January 
2025 unless before that date a formal planning application for the retention of 
the building has been approved by the local planning authority. 

2 The development shall be retained in accordance with the approved drawings 
1211/01 – Location Plan and 1211/02 – Site Plan. 

3 There shall be no means of external lighting anywhere on the site edged in red 
on the plans hereby approved or on any other land owned by the applicant that 
could be used to illuminate the stables or menage.  

4 There shall be no burning of stable wastes anywhere on the site edged in red 
on the plans hereby approved or on any other land under the control of the 
applicant and waste shall be managed in accordance with the details of the 
scheme of waste management approved as part of application 20/05135/DET. 
The development shall be used in accordance with the approved details in 
perpetuity. 

5 The occupation of the temporary mobile home shall be limited to a person solely 
or mainly working, or last working, in the locality in agriculture or in forestry, or a 
widow or widower or surviving civil partner of such a person, and to any resident 
dependants. 

Page 8



6 The mobile home shall make provision for car parking within the site in 
accordance with the Council's adopted car parking standards and be retained 
as such for the permitted duration of the development.  

7 The surface water drainage scheme shall be retained in accordance with the 
details approved under the terms of application 20/05135/DET for the permitted 
duration of the development. 

8 The foul water drainage scheme shall be retained in accordance with the details 
approved under the terms of application 20/05135/DET for the permitted 
duration of the development. 

 
 

The meeting closed at 7.52 pm. 
 
 
 

V J BELL 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 
DIRECTOR OF SERVICE DELIVERY 

to 
SOUTH EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
9 MARCH 2022 
 

Application Number 22/00035/FUL 

Location 
Temperance House, 22 High Street, Burnham-on-Crouch, CM0 
8AA 

Proposal Addition of rooftop belvedere serving existing 2nd floor apartment 

Applicant Mr & Mrs J Thornton 

Agent Mr Michael Lewis – Bailey Lewis 

Target Decision Date 10 March 2022 

Case Officer Hayley Sadler 

Parish BURNHAM ON CROUCH 

Reason for Referral to the 
Committee / Council 

Member Call In 
Councillor V J Bell has called in the application for the following 
policy reasons: LDP policy D1 (Design Quality and Built 
Environment) and D3 (Conservation and Heritage Assets) 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

 
REFUSE for the reason as detailed in Section 8 of this report.  

2. SITE MAP 

 
Please see below. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 
 

Page 12



 
 

3. SUMMARY 

 
3.1 Proposal / brief overview, including any relevant background information 
 
3.1.1 The application site is located on the northern side of the High Street within the 

settlement boundary and town centre of Burnham-on-Crouch and the Burnham 
Conservation Area.  This site is occupied by a three-storey mixed use building 
comprising of a café/restaurant to the ground floor and residential apartments on the 
first and second floors.  The surrounding area consists of a mixture of commercial 
and residential properties of different designs, although none of the buildings in the 
vicinity are as high as the subject building.  The site lies within flood zones 2 and 3. 
The site is subject to an article 4 direction which restricts the following: 
 
- Installation/alterations to the windows, doors and other openings to the front 

elevation including the insertion of dormer or other windows in the roofs and the 
change of roof material.  
 

- The installation of a micro-generation unit to the front roof slope. 
 

- The construction of a porch outside the front of the dwellinghouse. 
 

- The erection or construction of any fences, walls gates and other forms of 
enclosure to the front of the dwellinghouse. 

 
- The construction of a vehicle hardstanding incidental to the dwellinghouse and 

the formation of an access to a dwellinghouse. 
 

- The painting of (or application of colour to) the exterior of any part of the 
dwellinghouse fronting the highway. (This includes the painting over of unpainted 
brick or stonework but excluded the painting of doors, windows, bargeboards and 
soffits). 

 
- The erection, alteration or removal of a chimney on a dwellinghouse or on a 

building in the curtilage of a dwellinghouse whether or not it fronts the highways.  
 
However, article 4 has no impact on the development proposed. 
 

3.1.2 Planning permission is sought for addition of a rooftop belvedere, which would be 
accessed by the apartment on the second floor via an internal staircase. 

 
3.1.3 The proposed belvedere would measure 3.4 metres in depth, 5.7 metres in width, 

with an eaves height of 2.2 metres and a ridge height of 2.8 metres.  The lower parts 
of the proposal would not be visible due to the presence of a 1.05 metre high parapet 
which runs around the perimeter of the subject building. 

 
3.1.4 This application is a resubmission of 21/00902/FUL which was refused for the 

following reason: 

1. The proposed development, by reason of its siting, scale, bulk, form, design 
and materials, would result in visual harm to the character and appearance of 
the conservation area and is therefore contrary to policies S1, D1, D3 and H4 
of the Local Development Plan as well as guidance contained within the NPPF 
and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

Page 13



 
3.1.5 The alterations made to the proposed rooftop belvedere has resulted in the reduction 

of the width by 0.6 metres, the eaves height by 0.2 metres and the overall ridge 
height by 0.2 metres.  The proposed materials have also been changed. 

3.2 Conclusion 
 
3.2.1 It is considered that the proposed development, by reason of its location, bulk, scale 

and design would harm the appearance or character of the building itself and would 
not preserve the special character of the Conservation Area. Due to its relationship 
with the neighbouring properties, the proposal would not result in any undue harm by 
way of overlooking or loss of amenity. It is therefore considered that the proposed 
development is not accordance with the relevant policies contained within the Local 
Development Plan (LDP) and the proposal is therefore recommended for refusal. 

4. MAIN RELEVANT POLICIES 

Members’ attention is drawn to the list of background papers attached to the agenda. 
 
4.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2021 including paragraphs: 

 7  Sustainable development 

 8  Three objectives of sustainable development 

 10-12  Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

 38  Decision-making  

 47-50  Determining applications 

 54 – 57  Planning conditions and obligations 

 119 – 123 Making effective use of land  

 126 – 136 Achieving well-designed places 

 148-169 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal 
change 

 184 – 192 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
 
4.2 Maldon District Local Development Plan 2014 – 2029 approved by the Secretary 

of State: 

 S1  Sustainable Development 

 S8  Settlement Boundaries and the Countryside  

 D1  Design Quality and Built Environment 

 D3  Conservation and Heritage Assets 

 D5  Flood Risk and Coastal Management 

 H4  Effective Use of Land 
 
4.3 Burnham On Crouch Neighbourhood Plan 2016-2029 (Made 7 September 2017) 

 EC.5  High Street Character 
 
4.4 Relevant Planning Guidance / Documents: 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 Maldon District Design Guide (MDDG) SPD 2017 

 Maldon District Vehicle Parking Standards SPD 

 Burnham-on-Crouch Conservation Area Review and Character Appraisal 

5. MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

 
5.1 Principle of Development 

 
5.1.1 The principle of enlarging the subject building and of providing facilities in association 

with residential accommodation is considered acceptable in principle, subject to other 
material considerations which are considered below. 

Page 14



 
 
5.2 Design and Impact on the Character of the Area 
 
5.2.1 The planning system promotes high quality development through good inclusive 

design and layout, and the creation of safe, sustainable, liveable and mixed 
communities.  Good design should be indivisible from good planning.  Recognised 
principles of good design seek to create a high-quality built environment for all types 
of development. 

 
5.2.2 It should be noted that good design is fundamental to high quality new development 

and its importance is reflected in the NPPF.  Similar support for high quality design 
and the appropriate layout, scale and detailing of development is required by Policy 
D1 and H4 of the LDP and is found within the MDDG (2017). 

 
5.2.3    A successful development needs to integrate well with the existing streetscene. 

Visual cues such as rhythm, proportions and alignments taken from adjacent 
buildings should be used to inform the design of the development. 
 

5.2.4 Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
requires the Council to pay special attention to desirability of preserving or enhancing 
the character or appearance of the conservation area.  Similarly, policy D3 of the 
approved Maldon District Local Development Plan (MDLDP) states that development 
proposals that affect heritage assets must preserve or enhance its special character, 
appearance, setting and any features and fabric of architectural or historic interest. 
Where a proposed development would cause less than substantial harm to the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm will be weighed against the 
public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use. 
 

5.2.5 The site is located within Maldon Conservation Area and is near to listed buildings, 
namely The Star Hotel is sited on the opposite side of the High Street, to the south 
west of the site. No 22 High Street was originally built in the 19th century as the 
Royal Hotel.  There is a date plaque of 1848, although this date should be treated 
with suspicion as it is set into a modern parapet wall.  Stylistically, the building would 
fit a date of the 1870s or 80s.  From 1910 it became the Royal Temperance Hotel.  It 
is a three-storey brick building.  It has an original painted timber shopfront with a 
carriage arch to one side.  The upper two storeys of the front elevation are faced with 
red brick, embellished with pilasters, decorative terracotta panels, stone window 
surrounds and a cornice, all in a loosely Italianate style.  Old photographs and 
drawings show that there was once a belvedere on the roof, glazed on all sides, each 
‘light’ having an arched head.  Although not known, it is understood that the original 
belvedere was probably made of painted timber.  The building makes a very positive 
contribution to the special character of the Burnham-on-Crouch Conservation Area. 
 

5.2.6 The scheme proposes to introduce a new belvedere, partially in place of where the 
original belvedere was placed.  The proposed belvedere rooftop addition would be 
approximately 3.3 metres wider, 0.9 metres deeper and would have an increased 
eaves height of 0.13 metres and overall increased ridge height of 0.2 metres greater 
than the original belvedere.  Given these increases in proportions, the proposed 
development would be significantly larger than the previous belvedere, almost being 
double the size, and with an increased height also. 
  

5.2.7 The proposed belvedere rooftop addition would be highly visible within the wider 
streetscene of the High Street, and in particularly from the eastern side of the High 
Street as it will be located on top of a three-storey building within a busy High Street, 
which forms the heart of the town centre and the Conservation Area and would not 
benefit from any screening which would reduce its visual prominence.  It would also 

Page 15



 
be highly visible from Chapel Road, due to the height of the subject building in 
comparison with buildings in the area, the proposal’s proximity to the boundaries and 
its bulk and design.  Whilst the original belvedere read as a light and ancillary 
element to the original building, the proposed belvedere is far more substantial in 
appearance, and would be a highly prominent addition to a highly visible building in 
the area. 
 

5.2.8 In terms of materials, it is proposed to use clear double glazed in black metal frames 
for the walls and standing seam grey zinc roof.  The materials would not match or be 
similar to the existing materials of the host property.  Whilst this in itself would not 
necessarily be unacceptable given the historic precedent, due to the proposal’s size 
and siting, the use of such materials is considered to add to its undue visual 
prominence, resulting in an addition which is not considered to be sympathetic to, or 
preserve the character and appearance of, the surrounding conservation area. 
 

5.2.9 Given the above assessment, it is considered that the proposed development would 
result in harm to the visual amenity of the street scene due to its scale, form, 
proportions and detailing which would detract from the special character of the 
conservation area.  Furthermore, the proposed development would be highly visible 
in long and medium range views from the public realm, as a result of the prominent 
position of the host building within the High Street, which would exacerbate the harm 
and would detrimentally impact the existing streetscene and conservation area. 
 

5.2.10 As a result of the size, bulk, height, design, materials and position of the 
development it is considered that the proposed belvedere would harm the character 
or appearance of the host building and would fail to preserve the character of the 
wider conservation area, contrary to Policies D1, D3 and H4 of the LDP. 

 
5.3 Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
5.3.1 The basis of policy D1 of the approved LDP seeks to ensure that development will 

protect the amenity of its surrounding areas taking into account privacy, overlooking, 
outlook, noise, smell, light, visual impact, pollution, daylight and sunlight.  This is 
supported by section C07 of the MDDG (2017). 

 
5.3.2 The application site is bordered by three neighbouring properties, 24 High Street to 

the east, 20 and 20A High Street to the west. 
 

5.3.3 The application site is located within the High Street of Burnham and the 
neighbouring properties are commercial properties and one and two storey 
properties.  The proposed belvedere would be located on the roof top of No.22 High 
Street and would be set back from the front principal elevation and the western 
elevation.  It would sit on the boundary line of the property to the east No.24 High 
Street.  However, this is a single storey commercial property.  Whilst it is likely to 
increase the amount of activity on the roof terrace, which could result in an increase 
in noise and disturbance, the siting of the roof terrace is sufficiently removed from 
nearby residential properties such that any increase in noise and disturbance would 
be acceptable.  Due to the separation distance in the heights of the neighbouring 
properties it is not considered that the development would result in a significantly 
detrimental increase in overshadowing, overlooking or overbearing impact. 
 

5.3.4 Therefore, it is not considered that the development would represent an 
unneighbourly form of development or give rise to overlooking or overshadowing, in 
accordance with the stipulations of Policy D1 of the LDP in this respect. 

 
 

Page 16



 
5.4 Access, Parking and Highway Safety 
 
5.4.1 Policy D1 of the approved LDP seeks to include safe and secure vehicle and cycle 

parking having regard to the Council’s adopted parking standards.  
 
5.4.2 The proposed development would have no impact upon car parking requirements on 

site and would not reduce the availability of on-site parking.  Therefore, no objection 
is raised in relation to traffic and transport issues.  

 
Private Amenity Space and Landscaping 

 
5.4.3 Policy D1 of the approved LDP requires all development to provide sufficient and 

usable private and public amenity spaces, green infrastructure and public open 
spaces.  In addition, the adopted MDDG SPD 2017 advises a suitable garden size for 
each type of dwellinghouse, namely 50m2 of private amenity space for dwellings with 
two bedrooms. 
 

5.4.4 Whilst the proposed development would reduce the size of the roof terrace it would 
not result in the level of private amenity space being below the minimum standard 
recommended in the SPD.  Therefore, the proposal is in compliance with Policy D1 of 
the LDP in this respect. 

 
5.5 Flood Risk 
 
5.5.1 The site is located within Flood Zones 2 and 3.  An Environment Agency Flood Risk 

Matrix has been submitted with the application.  As this has been satisfactorily 
completed, no objections to the proposal are raised with respect to flood risk subject 
to the imposition of a condition to require that the development is carried-out in 
accordance with the Matrix. 

6 ANY RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 

 

 BUR/92/67 – Change of use, Refused, allowed on appeal – 23 May 1968 

 99/00554/FUL - Change of use of redundant office and disused bedroom 
accommodation to residential flat, Approved – 26 August 1999 

 01/00348/FUL - Proposal to increase the height of roof parapet, roof top 
conservatory, internal alterations to provide five bedroom property, Approved 
– 28 June 2001 

 01/00349/CON - Demolition of roof top cover to pedestrian access cover, 
Grant Conservation Area Consent – 27 June 2001 

 06/00817/FUL - Change of use of ground floor and first floor of building to 
bar/restaurant and second floor to associated function room.  Erection of 
external fire escape and alterations to fenestration, Approved – 20 October 
2006 

 09/00590/FUL - Conversion of second floor function room to a one bedroom 
flat for staff accommodation, Approved – 13 November 2009 

 12/00628/FUL - Change of use on first and second floor from functions rooms 
to residential use, Approved – 28 December 2012 

 17/00916/FUL - Subdivision of 1No. existing two storey apartment into 2No. 
apartments, subdivision of existing ground floor A3 cafe / restaurant to create 
B1 office usage, Approved – 10 October 2017 

Page 17



 

 21/00902/FUL - Addition of rooftop belvedere serving existing 2nd floor 
apartment, Refused – 5 November 2021 

 

7 CONSULTATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 

 
7.1 Representations received from Parish / Town Councils 
 

Name of Parish / Town 
Council 

Comment Officer Response 

Burnham-on-Crouch Town 
Council 

Support the application Noted 

 
7.2 Internal Consultees  
 

Name of Internal 
Consultee 

Comment Officer Response 

Conservation and Heritage 
Specialist 

No objections Noted 

 
7.3 Representations received from Interested Parties  
 
7.3.1 No letters of representation for the application have been received. 

8 PROPOSED REASON FOR REFUSAL 

1. The proposed development, by reason of its siting, scale, bulk, form, design and 
materials, would result in visual harm to the character and appearance of the 
conservation area and is therefore contrary to policies S1, D1, D3 and H4 of the 
Local Development Plan as well as guidance contained within the NPPF and the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	5 22/00035/FUL - Temperance House, 22 High Street, Burnham-On-Crouch, CM0 8AA

